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Island Investment Development Inc. 

Minister's Message 

THE HONOURABLE ANTOINETTE PERRY 

Lieutenant Governor of Prince Edward Island 

May It Please Your Honour: 

Pursuant to the Annual Reporting Framework of the Financial Administration Act 

governing Crown Corporations, I am pleased to present to you, the Annual Report 

of Island Investment Development Inc. for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022. 

Sincerely Yours, 

/ 
Hon. Bloyce Thompson 

Minister of Economic Growth, Tourism and Culture 

October 4, 2022 

- --- ----
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Message from the Chairperson 

TO THE HONOURABLE BLOYCE THOMPSON 

Minister of Economic Growth, Tourism and Culture 

Prince Edward Island 

Dear M inister, 

I take pleasure in presenting you with the Annual Report for the fiscal year ending 

March 31, 2022. 

This Annual Report is being presented pursuant to the Island Investment 

Development Act. 

Sincerely Yours, 

Johnny Flynn 

Chairperson, Board of Directors - Island Investment Development Inc. 

October 4, 2022 
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Island Investment Development Inc. 

Message from the Executive Director 

TO THE HONOURABLE BLOYCE THOMPSON 

Minister of Economic Growth, Tourism and Culture 

Prince Edward Island 

Dear Minister, 

-

I present to you the Annual Report for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022. 

This Annual Report is being presented pursuant to the Island Investment 

Development Act. 

Sincerely Yours, 

Jamie Aiken, CPA, CA 

Executive Director 

October 4, 2022 
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Government Ent ity Overview 

Island Investment Development Inc. (llDI) is a crown corporation administered by a board reporting to 

the Minister of Economic Growth, Tourism and Culture. llDl's mandate is authorized under the Island 

Investment Development Act (1990, c.13 R.S.P.E.I. 1988, 1-10.1). llDl's responsibilities are as follows: 

• raise capital in foreign and domestic markets; 

• provide financing to projects of significant economic benefit to the province; 

• promote the province as a destination for offshore investment and; 

• attract entrepreneuria l expertise and skilled labour to the province. 

Miss ion 

The mission of llDI is to support immigrants who choose to live and work in Prince Edward Island. llDI 

continues to focus on this by working with Island employers and other external stakeholders and 

working with other Departments to promote and implement population retention strategies. 

The vision of llDI is for a vibrant and growing population, through immigration, contributing to the 

economy and culture across PEI. 

Mandate 

llDI is responsible for immigration, settlement and retention whi le working collaboratively with other 

departments t oward the overa ll economic and popu lation growth of PEI. llDl's programs and services 

also extend to Islanders, both within and outside of the province, and to Canadians looking for 

opportunities in Prince Edward Island. 

llDI is committed to its vision of establishing and maintaining Prince Edward Island as a destination of 

choice for newcomers and current residents. It is t hrough our commitment to this vision, which ll DI will 

work to: 

• Administer the PEI Provincial Nominee Program (PNP) and Atlantic Immigration Program (AIP) 

and select immigrants who fu lfi ll a labour market need, and wi ll make a contribution to PEl's 

economy; 

• Deve lop, implement and deliver immigration programs t hat encourage the integration and 

retention of newcomers; 

• Promote relationships and support services for connecting employers with foreign nati 

employees; 
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• Market all of the immigration pathways to Prince Edward Island, and promote PEI as an 

attractive immigration destination for both working opportunit ies and community building; 

• Provide coordination and funding to stakeholders that are delivering various services to 

newcomers; 

• Stimulate economic deve lopment through lending, to support the growth and needs of the 

private sector in PEI and; 

• Support immigrant entrepreneurs in the establ ishment of their business. 

PEI OFFICE OF IMMIGRATION 
2021-2024 Strategic Plan 

VISION 
A vibrant and growing population, through immigration, 

contributing to the economy and culture across PEI 

MISSION 
Support immigrants who choose to live and work in PEI 

OUR PURPOSE IS TO; 
• Provide guidance and suppo1t to Island employers In addressing labour market needs throu~ Immigration 
• Attract, Integrate, and relaln lmmlgiant wO<kers and entrepreneurs 
• Promote and deliver pathways to permanent residency In PEI 

\. 

Transparent 
and accountablo 
for our actions 

GOAL 1 

Afign with 
Island 

Employers' 
u botl' Market 

Nnds 

.I 

GUIDIN(i PRINCIPLES 

Collaboratlve I AJlgnm<nt to I Responsive to 
to achieve cnsuro tho greatest and reflective of 

shared ptiorllles contributk>n to PEI diverse needs 

STRATEGIC GOALS 

GOAL2 GOAL3 GOAL4 

SlmpGly Grow Enhance 
Navigation Immigrant Successful 

of Pathways Entrepreneur Immigrant 
to Permanent Success In PEI Integration and 

Residency Retention 

\. .I 

Respectful or 
each oth« and 

those we wo1k with 

GOALS 

Strengthen 
Our Internal 

Culture 
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PEI Office of Immigration 

Operating as the PEI Office of Immigration, llDI is responsible for provincial immigration as outlined in 

the Canada-Prince Edward Island Co-operation on Immigration agreement. This responsibility includes 

the delivery of the Prince Edward Island Provincial Nominee Program (PNP) as well as the promotion, 

recruitment, selection, settlement and integration of immigrants to the province. 1101 is also responsible 

for administering the Atlantic Immigration Program in collabo ration with Immigration Refugee and 

Citizenship Canada (IRCC). 

The Provincial Nominee Programs were established by Immigration, Refugees and Citizenship Canada 

(IRCC) formerly Citizenship Immigration Canada (CIC) beginning in the late 1990's to allow provinces and 

territories to nominate foreign nationals who met the requirements for economic immigration and were 

interested in settling in their province. Prince Edward Island signed the agreement in June 2008. One of 

the primary goals of the new agreements was to support a shift in the destination of newcomers to 

benefit sma ller provinces, such as Prince Edward Island. 

The Prince Edward Island Provincial Nominee Program (PNP) nominates individuals to the federal 

government for permanent residency. Individuals are chosen based on their ability to economically 

establish and their intent to live and work in PEI. If approved by the federal government, they receive 

permanent residence. The Province has also signed an agreement with IRCC to implement the Atlantic 

Immigration Program (AIP) that was launched on January 1, 2022. This is a permanent immigration 

program that is based on the pilot that ran for five years and expired on December 31, 2021. 

The process of receiving permanent residency through the immigration pathway can be a lengthy process 

with average processing times ranging from six months to two years. The Office of Immigration accepts 

and reviews applications for PNP, and if approved, the candidate is then nominated to the federal 

government for permanent residency. After being approved by IRCC for permanent residency, the 

candidates (and family members) land on PEI and are recorded as permanent residency admissions for 

PEI. 

Programs and Initiatives 

Expression of Interest 

In 2018, 1101 launched an Expression of Interest (EOI) system for receiving applications. All foreign 

nationals interested in applying for permanent residency through the Business Impact Category, Express 

Entry or Labour Impact Category must first create an account and profile through our on-line Expression 

of Interest System. 

On a monthly basis, applicants who meet our program criteria, and meet the minimum estab lis~olnt 

threshold will receive an Invitation to Apply to the PEI Provincial Nominee Program. DuringflsCal 
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2021/2022, 1101 invited 141 applicants to the Business program and 1627 applicants to our Labour 

programs (tota l 1768). 

Details on our Expression of Interest draws can be found on our website at: www.princeedwardisland. 

ca/ en/topic/ express ion-interest. 

Immigration Categories 

Business Impact Category- Foreign nationals w ho are planning to establish a business on PEI use this 

pathway to gain Permanent Residency. The Business Impact Category aims to attract app licants with 

sufficient financial resources and either a history of business ownership or a high-level of management 

experience. This category helps to st imulate economic development and helps diversify the market 

opportunities through attracting new business owners to PEI. 

This stream allows applicants to come to PEI on a Work Permit to purchase and/or start their business 

prior to being nominated by the Province. Nomination for permanent residency is then dependent on 

the performance of the applicant. 

Labour Impact Category- The employer-driven category of PEI programs is called the Labour Impact 

Category. The Labour Impact Category is designed to help fill permanent labour shortages and skill gaps 

for PEI businesses who have exhausted all other avenues of finding a PEI resident, or other Canadian, 

wil ling and able to perform the job. This category provides support pathways to permanent residency for 

foreign nationals who have a valid long-term job offer from a company located in PEI. The Labour Impact 

Category ensures that is land businesses are able to find suitable employees when labour shortages arise 

due to required skill sets or seasonality. The five streams from which an applicant ca n choose, are as 

follows: 

I. Skilled Worker: This program is designed to attract and retain highly skilled workers that 

have completed the appropriate training, work experience and language ability to fill 

employer-identified labour market shortages. This stream is typically used by the 

Information Technology, Restaurant and Tourism, Aerospace, Agricu lture and Health 

Care Sectors to help address their labour shortages. 

II. Critical Worker: This program is also designed to attract and retain workers to fill long

term labour market shortages in occupations that typically require a high school 

education and/or on-the-job training. Transportation and Logistics, Seafood Processing, 

and Health Care are sectors that typically use this stream to help address their labour 

shortages. 

Ill. International Graduate: This program is designed to provide a pathway for those 

students that attended a publicly funded PEI University or College to ob~ain perma~ 

residency, so long as they find full time employment with a PEI employe~..--
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Prince Edward Island continues to be a destination of choice of international students. 

PE I post-secondary institutions are attended each year by thousands of international 

students because of its culture and community. It is imperative that we make sure that 

these talented, bright, young individuals have the opportunity to stay on PEI and build 

their lives here and contribute to growing the PEI economy after graduation. 

IV. Intermediate Experience Stream: This program allows Island employers to fill 

intermed iate-skilled positions that they are unable to fill through the local job market. 

This program is designed to attract and retain workers with relevant Canadian work 

experience in occupations that typica lly require a high school education and/or on-the

job training. Transportation and Logistics, Food Processing, and Health Care are sectors 

that typically use this stream to help address their labour shortages. 

V. Occupations in Demand: Th is program is des igned to attract and reta in workers to fill 

long-term labour market shortages in specific priority sectors in PEI. These sectors 

include Transportation and Logistics, Tourism and Hospitality, Construction, and Health 

Care. 

Express Entry- IRCC has an electronic application management system that was started in 2015 ca lled 

Express Entry. The programs that are administered through this system are the Federal Skilled Worker, 

the Federal Ski lled Trades, and the Canadian Experience Class. Applicants are ranked on a number of 

human capital factors and the top scoring applicants are then invited to apply for permanent residency. 

The primary goa ls of the Express Entry Category are to eliminate backlogs that IRCC had in these 

programs, to eliminate the requirement to process files on a first-in, first -out basis, and to improve 

overa ll processing times. Through this system, only the top ranked applicants are selected to apply. IRCC 

has committed to a process that will see 80% of applicants processed within six months. 

Each province is given an enhanced allocation to use through Express Entry in order to nominate 

individuals who intended to live and work in that province. Applicants through this st rea m are required 

to meet the criteria of at least one of the federal programs mentioned above that are administered 

th rough the system, as well as having expressed their interest to live and work in PEI. llDI then se lects 

the individuals that meet the specific needs of the province's labour market and invites them to make a 

formal application. 

Atlantic Immigration Program- The Atlantic Immigration Program (AIP) was launched on January 1, 2022 

and is an employer-driven federa l immigration program that is designed to help PEI businesses fi ll 

permanent labour shortages and skill gaps by endorsing fore ign nationals for permanent residency. It is 

based on the success of the previous pilot program that aimed to increase the number of new 

immigrants estab lishing in the Atlantic region. 
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Fund Management, Lending and Strategic Initiatives 

1101 also administers the PEI Century 2000 Fund Inc. {PEICF), which was created to support the growth 

and needs of the private sector and stimulate economic development. Through this fund, llDI loans 

fu nds through interest bearing financing programs to PEI businesses where there wi ll be significant 

economic benefit to the Province. 

General lending conditions associated with PEICF loans are as follows: 

• Loans are available for a term of five years; 

• Loans bear interest at an annual rate of 4%; 

• PEICF see ks similar security packages as would be ordinari ly sought by a traditiona l chartered 

bank; 

• At the end of 2021/22 fisca l year the loan portfolio was $164,242,938. 

PEICF's lending activities are aligned with provincial priorities and Innovation PEl's Strategic Sectors. On 

occasion, PEICF may also finance certain projects that may fall outside of PE l's Strategic Sectors, which 

have significant economic benefits to the provincial economy. 

In many instances PEICF works in partnership with traditional lending inst itutions, Federal Government 

agencies and other local economic development agencies to complete financing packaged for a variety 

of projects. 

Siemon Park is a private corporation and is owned 100% by 1101. llDI works collaboratively with Siemon 

Park Corporation {SPC) on key initiatives to support economic growth. The Vision for SPC as identified in 

the 2021-24 strategic plan is to be an active and v ibrant community building prosperity for Islanders. 

SPC has a purpose to create wealth and jobs in Prince Edward Island by leveraging the assets of Siemon 

Park and facilitating strategic private and public sector economic development investments in aerospace, 

training, and real estate development. SPC's strategic goa ls are as follows: 

• Support world-class aerospace customers and attract high-growth aerospace companies; 

• Establish Siemon Park as a leading national public safety training campus; 

• Diversify and grow commercial development; 

• Grow our vibrant and thriving residential community; 

• Build a sustainable community for our people, environment, and economy. 
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A summary of SPC's 2021/22 financial results is presented in the table below: 

Financial Highlights 2021-22 2020-21 $Change % Change 

Commercia l rent $4,629,206 $4,155,117 $474,089 11.4% 

Accommodatio ns revenue $1,590, 717 $1,271,834 $318,883 25.1% 

Food & beve rage revenue $1,466,974 $940,302 $526,672 56.0% 

Total revenue $11,409, 745 $10,092,513 $1,317,232 13.1% 

General operating expense $1,760,209 $1,230,661 $529,548 43.0% 

Heating fue l $1,396,803 $859,000 $537,803 62.6% 

Insurance $882,453 $600,536 $281,917 46.9% 

Net income $686,312 $1,001,458 ($315,146) -31.5% 

The increase in commercial rent was derived from the opening of a provincial courthouse in Siemon 

Park, a number of other new tenants, and an increase in heat recovery from commercia l tenants. 

Commercia l occupancy was at 90%. SPC has long hosted Atlant ic Police Academy (APA) training and in 

partnership with APA began hosting Correctiona l Service Canada (CSC) training in 2019-20. The impact of 

CSC training can be seen in the growth in accommodations revenue and food and beverage revenue. 

Train ing days increased from 20,492 in 2020-21 to 24,638 in 2021-22. 

In 2021-22, in accordance with its strategic priority to be a sustainable community, SPC completed 

commercial and residentia l insu lation projects with funding assistance from Efficiency PEI. Land was 

leased to the PEI Energy Corporation for the development of a microgrid that will deliver 10 megawatts 

of renewable solar power to the loca l grid that feeds Siemon Park. $923,861 was invested in property 

and equipment and $2,614,664 was invested in investment properties including $675,844 for new 

residential homes. Six new residential homes were completed in 2021-22 and six more homes w ill be 

completed in 2022-23, bringing the total number of homes at Siemon Park to 265. 
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l<ey Indicators 

The Province of Prince Edward Island is given an allocation from IRCC every year, which is the maximum 

number of permanent resident nomination certificates llDI can use in a year. A nomination certificate 

represents a fami ly unit and is given out on a ca lendar year basis. The Province's allocations for 2021 and 

2022 is presented in the table below. 

Table 1: 2021 and 2022 Allocations 

I Base PNP 

NOC C Initiative 

Express Entry 

Atlantic Immigration Pilot 

Stream 2021 

660 

200 

350 

240 

Total 1,4so I 

2021 
(Revised) 2022 

960 920 

200 0 

300 390 

240 I 264 

1,700 1,574 

The allocation given to the Province is divided between the PEI PNP streams, also known as "base 

allocation", the Express Entry stream called "enhanced allocation", and the Atlantic Immigration 

Program. In 2019, IRCC introduced a special allocation focused on low/intermediate skilled occupations 

known as the NOC-C initiative. This was a temporary measure that expired in 2021. 

In 2021, we were granted an increase of 250 spaces under our PNP during the year (original allocation 

was 1,210) as skilled labour is continuing to be a pressure point for Island businesses. 

There are severa l selection factors that are used by llDI to ensure that all candidates meet program 

criteria and allow for the best chance for successful candidates to economically establish themselves in 

Prince Edward Island. Age, education, language ability, work experience, and connection to the 

workforce are all key factors that influence the success of a newcomer after their landing. The following 

tables reflect an overview of llDl's nominations for 2021-2022. 
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In 2021-2022, 97% of nominations were for employer driven programs to support workforce in PEI. 

Employers in our province have turned to immigration to ass ist with labour shortages that cannot be 

filled with the existing domestic workforce. We continue to support Island employers facing labour 

challenges through our immigration programs. 

There were 188 Work Permit Support Letters issued to entrepreneur applicants in 2021-2022. Upon 

completion of Performance Agreements, these entrepreneur applicants w ill then be nominated by the 

Province to apply to t he Federal government for permanent residence. 

Table 2: 2021-22 Nominations by Category 

I Stream 

I PNP Workforce Streams 

Business/ Entrepreneur Stream 

Express Entry 

Atlantic Immigration Pilot 

I 

I 
I 
I 

It Families % 

847 

so 
324 

200 I 
Total I 1,421 I 

Nominations By Category 

• PNP Workforce Streams - 60% • Express Entry - 23% 

• Business/Entrepreneur Stream - 3% • Atlantic Immigration Pilot -14% 

60% 

3% I 

23% 

14% I 

100% 
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Level of education is one factor that 1101 eva luates when determining the likelihood of an applicant to 

economica lly establish in the province. The table below summarizes t he highest level of educat ions 

achieved by our program applicants in 2021-2022. 

Table 3: 2021-22 Nominations by Level of Education 

I Level of Education 

Ph.D. 

Master's Degree 

Bachelor's Degree 

Certificate I Diploma 

Trade I Apprenticeship 

Secondary 

Total I 

#Applicants 

10 

65 

357 

861 

1:: I 
1,421 I 

% I 
1% I 
4% j 

25% 

61% 

1% I 
8% ' 

100% 

Nominations by Level of Education 

. Ph. D. - 1% 

• Master's Degree - 4% 

• Bachelor's Degree - 25% 

• Certificate/Diploma - 61 % 
• Trade/Apprenticeship -1% 

Secondary - 8% 

Note: M inimum education requi rement for the AIPP is Secondary. All applicants under this st ream are 

included in this category. 
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An aging population has a direct effect on the economy and the overall labour market. The table below 

summarizes ou r nominations by age over all our immigration streams. In 2021-2022, 86% of our 

nominations were under the age of 40 (88% in 2020-2021). These high percentages of newcomers under 

the age of 40 settling in Prince Edward Island have helped the decline of the province's median age over 

the last 3 years. 

Table 4: 2021-22 Nominations by Age All Categories 

I Age at Nomination 

I 20-29 

I 30-39 

1 40-49 

50-59 

60+ 

Total 

#Applicants 

929 

297 

151 I 
I 

40 I 

4 

1,421 

% 

65% 

21% 

11% 

3% 

0% 

100% 

Nominations by Age 

• 20-29 - 65% 

. 30-39- 21% 

. 40-49-11% 

• 50-59-3% 

. 60+-0% 
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Creating fa miliar communities and strong cultural surroundings for newcomers is important in the 

successful settlement and retention of newcomers in PEI. The countries of origin that have been 

nominated by PEI have diversified over the past number of years. A tota l of 72 different countries of 

origin are represented by our program appl icants. 

Table 5: 2021-22 Nominees by Country 

I Country 

~ India 
Philippines 

I China 

Vietnam 

Nigeria 

All Other Countries 

Total I 

#Families % 

813 57% 

239 17% 

62 4% 

29 2% 

26 2% 

252 I 18% l 
1,421 100% 

Nominations by Country 

• india-57% 

• Philippines -17% 

• china-4% 

--. 

• vietnam - 2% 

• Nigeria - 2% 

All Other Countries - 18% 
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Our immigration programs are helping the province increase its population, reduce its median age and 

provide economic benefits to the entire province. Immigration programs have been a key contributor 

towards regional and rural development as new fa milies move into communities across PEI. The table 

below summarizes the increased percentage of newcomers who have settled in rural communities over 

the last several years. 

Table 6: Rural Landings Percentage 

I 2018 2019 2020 I 2021 I 
I Rural 19% 22% 32% I 

Urban (Charlottetown) 81% 78% 68% I 

The table be low reflects the immigration landings (permanent residence for all family members) in 

Prince Edward Island for all immigration programs. 

Table 7: Prince Edward Island Landings 

I 2018 I 2019 2020 I 
Family Class 110 I 135 65 I 
Economic Immigration - Federal 310 505 110 I 
Economic Immigration - Provincial 1,630 1,725 1,005 I 
Refugees (Protected Persons) 85 80 55 I 

Total 2,135 2,445 1,295 

Permanent resident approvals have seen a steady increase across Canada in 2021 with 406,025 
permanent resident admissions. This is up sign ificant ly from 2020 (184,585) as IRCC had experienced 
significant impact on operations last year due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

We are working hard to improve retention rates for new immigrants. Our rates have been steadi ly 
improving. In 2020, IRCC released an evaluation report on the At lantic Immigration Pilot. This report 
presented retention rates for both Pilot and PNP based on surveys ca rried out by IRCC in 2020. The 
table below presents PEl's 1- and 2-year retention rates reported from t hese surveys. 

Table 8: Prince Edward Island Retention Rates 

PEI AIPP PEI PNP PEI Express Entry 

1 Year Retention 94% 89% 78% 

2 Year Retention 68% 80% 61% 

Source: IRCC Eva luation of the Atlantic Immigration Pi lot 

31% I 
69% 

2021 

130 

925 

1,480 

95 

2,630 

16 I Island Investment Development Inc. Annual Report 



l_DV.~~irn-~~t Oev~fqpffl~n.tJ/1~_: ::_~;;.-: __ ~-· . :~. .-<··:.:. .... _· 
•••••• ··-· ......... _ -........ ~ •. :-" _.,._. ' ... ,;J ·-·~~.~ ... - .. _...-_ ::-,.!'!', -~ ....... -. • - - _ .... _...__, 

We continue t o review our immigration programs and redesign and improve where necessary and 
continue to support settlement service providers and initiatives across t he Province in an effort to 
continue to improve retention rates. 

PEI has seen a tremendous growth in immigration with increasing nomination levels for both 2021 and 
2022 as compared to 2020. The Province continues to support workforce in PEI by nominating 
individua ls for permanent residency who have been living and working in PEI, especially those in 
essential service industries. During the year, our immigration programs supported 370 employers in PEI 
across a variety of sectors including hea lthcare, t rucki ng, manufactu ring and processing, agricu lture, and 
information technology. We anticipate that our annua l nomination leve ls wi ll continue to increase in the 
future. 

-· 
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Summary of the Strategic Plan and Future Direction 

llDI continues to deliver adaptive programs and services that facilitate and stimulate economic and socia l 

growth on Prince Edward Island. Immigration continues to be an important part of addressing the 

overall demographics that our province and our region is facing (ie. aging popu lations, declining 

workforce, smaller family sizes). Our goa l is to continue to achieve high levels of immigration wh ile 

working hard on continual improvement and success with immigrant integration and retention. 

PEI has several success stories w here immigrant workers and entrepreneurs have chosen PEI as their 

place to live and work. The intent is that these and other successes will continue into the future. This is 

critical to growing PEl's population and enriching our economy and culture. 

llDI recognizes the importance of continuing to align immigrant recruitment with labour market needs, 

simplifying t he navigation of pathways to permanent residency, and putting in place-directly and 

through partnerships-the supports for successful integration and retention of immigrant workers, 

entrepreneurs and their families. 

llDI and specifica lly The Office of Immigration has five goa ls over the next several years: 

GOAL 1: Align with Island Employers' Labour Market Needs 

GOAL 4: Enhance Successful Immigrant Integration and Retention 

GOAL 5: Strengthen Our Internal Culture 
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Some of the activities that the Office of Immigrat ion has engaged in over the last year in an effort to 

meet these goals include: 

• Working with IRCC and the other Atlantic Provinces t o develop and launch the Atlant ic 

Immigration Program; 

• Deve lopment of the Occupations in Demand immigration stream to help fi ll labour gaps in 

certain occupations in the Healthcare, Transportation, Tourism, and Construction industries; 

• Serving as Chair of the Atlantic Immigration and Attract ion Table, have worked with Atlantic 

colleagues to develop recommendations for IRCC on immigration programs; 

• Launch of socia l media pages fo r the office on Twitter and lnstagram to promote an inform of 

changes to immigration programs; 

• Actively participating in a post-secondary inst itute working group focused on retention of 

internationa l students; 

• Launch of quarterly newsletter for staff; 

• Training provided to Board of Directors on board governance and conflict of interest; 

• Over 120 outreach activit ies and presentations with employers, industry associations, and 

settlement providers. 

We continue to see immigration as an important factor in our economic and social growth in years to 

come and will continue to carry out activ ities in an effort to meet the goals of our strategic plan. 

Through these effo rts, PEI will continue t o experience a vibrant and growing population through 

immigration that contributes to PEl's economy and culture. 
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Highlights and Accomplishments 

Fo llowing sign ificant contractions in 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic, many sectors of the Canadian 

economy began to rebound in 2021 resuming operations close to pre pandemic levels. Prince Edward 

Island's economy was estimated to have increased 6.6% in 2021, the largest increase among all 

provinces. Nationally, the economy experienced growth of 4.6% in GDP. 

In fiscal 2021/22, PEl's population is estimated to have grown to 167,680 (the highest population in the 

history of the Province) for a 3.1% increase. This was the highest year over year growth rate among all 

the provinces in Canada. Nationally, population grew by 1.3%. The 2021 census indicates that PEl's 

population has grown by 8% since 2016, the highest growth among provinces during that time. 

After contracting by 3.2% in 2020 due to COVID-19 restrictions, employment increased by 3.5% in 2021. 

In 2021, the unemployment rate decreased by 1.2% to 9.2% for the year. 

~ "·Pop.µlq~ion ... 
·Gr.owth 
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As part of its mandate, llDI continues to provide settlement support for entrepreneurs that immigrate to 

PEI through the Business Impact Category. Much of this support is provided in-house through the 

Business Integration Unit. The staff in this unit meets with newcomers within one month of their arrival 

date in Canada and they continue to meet with them and answer any questions in order to ensure the 

newcomers compliance with their escrow or performance agreements. 

llDI is a fund ed par1ner with the Greater Charlottetown Area Chamber of Commerce for the PEI 

Connectors Program. The PEI Connectors program offers support services to businesses owned and 

operated by immigrants. The initiative also connects new Islanders and new graduates to business and 

community leaders in order to grow profess ional networks and expand career opportunities on the 

Island. They do this through hosting one on one meetings, business workshops, and networking events 

as part of their programming. PEI Connectors offe rs services at no cost in English, French, Hindi, 

Mandarin, Cantonese, and Persian to encourage connections and provide necessary resou rces to job 

seekers and entrepreneurs. PEI Connectors Program has a presence in all three counties w ith offices in 

Charlottetown, Summerside and Three Rivers. Ultimate ly, PEI Connectors is designed to aid integration, 

success, and retention of immigrants on Prince Edward Island. 

llDI continues to fund a Settlement Worker position at Immigration & Refugee Services association PEI 

(IRSA). This individual is responsible for travelling across the province visiting businesses and meeting 

with both employers and employees who are part of the AIP. This person delivers presentations to 

employers to help them understand their role and responsibilities in the AIP and provides detailed 

information on IRSA programs and services as well referrals for additional settlement support, 

integration activities, language learning supports, transportation, etc. 

llDI also funds IRSA's annual DiverseCity Multicultura l Festiva l which celebrates multiculturalism on PEI. 

DiverseCity is PEl's largest, fami ly-friendly, free, outdoor street festival and provides a multicu ltural 

meeting-place which is accessible to al l Islanders - new and established - and helps to create a more 

welcoming community for immigrants. DiverseCity festivals are held annually in Summerside, 

Evangeline, Alberton, Three Rivers and Charlottetown. 

llDI also funds language classes specific to the needs of both entrepreneur and labour clients. The basic 

English or French level of PNP applicants has been increasing over the years, and a need was identified 

for more specific t ra ining in business and workplace language as opposed to basic English or French. On

site workplace language classes have been funded through Study Abroad Canada to meet this need. 

There are currently close to over 1,500 international students enrolled at PEI post-secondary inst itutions. 

The retention of International graduates is a priority of the Province of PEI. llDI has dedicated staff who 

works close ly with Holland College, UPEI, and College de l'lle assisting internationa l students who may 

wish to stay on PEI to live and work upon graduation. 

-
21 I Island Investment Development Inc. Annual Report 



In collaboration with the Department of Economic Growth, Tourism, and Culture, 1101 has funded a 

Family Counsellor position at the Immigration & Refugee Services Association (IRSA). This individual is 

responsible for providing the newcomer population in PEI with proactive counselling that will assist them 

in dealing with some of the psychological, cultural, and environmental factors that are having a negative 

impact on their settlement, adaptation, and integration process as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Prince Edward Island is proud of the accomplishments of our Immigration Programs. We continue to 

support integration efforts and showcase success achieved and work with our ethno-cultural groups and 

partners to support integration efforts. It is important to celebrate the success of our newcomers and 

we will continue to profile these successes on our website and our various socia l media channels 

including Twitter, lnstagram, and YouTube. 
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ArsenaultBestCameronEllis 
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS 

Member of The AC Group of Independent Accounting Firms 

June 23, 2022 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors oflsland Investment Development Inc. 

Opinion 

Chru·tcrcd Prnfesslonal Accountonts & 
Business Advisors 
II Mad.cod Crescent 
Chorlottetown, Prince Edword Islond 
Canedo ClE 3K2 
Telephone (002) 3G8·3100 
Fox [902) 566-5074 
www.ocgca.cn 

We have aud ited the accompanying consolidated financial statements oflsland Investment Development Inc., 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2022, and the consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the financi al statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in a ll material respects, the 
financia l pos ition of Island Investment Development Inc. as at March 31, 2022, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Island Investment Development Inc. in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are re levant to our audit of the financial s tatements in Canada, 
and we have fulfi lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentati on of the consolidated financia l statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consol idated financia l statements, management is responsible for assessing Island Investment 
Development lnc.'s abi lity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Island 
Investment Development Inc. or to cease operations, or has no realistic a lternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing Island Investment Development Inc. 's financial 
reporting process. 
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ArsenaultBestCameronEllis 
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS 

Member of The AC Group of Independent Accounting Firms 

Chm·torcd Profoss lonul Accounlnnls & 
Business Advlsol'S 
8 Macleod Crt-sccnt 
Charlottetown, l'rincc Edward Jslnnct 
Canada C1E 3K2 
Telephone (002) 368·3 IOO 
Fox [902) 5136-5074 
www.ocgco.co 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards wi ll always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are cons idered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with 
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fi nancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respons ive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Is land Investment Development Inc. 's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on Island Investment Development Inc.'s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause Island Investment 
Development Inc. to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

(2) 



Island Investment Develop1nent Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
As at March 31, 2022 

Assets 
Cash 
Marketable securities 
Accounts receivable (notes 7 and 17) 
Prepaid expense 
Inventory (note 15) 
Demand loan receivable (note 9) 
Notes receivable (note I 0) 
Advances to related company (note 17) 
Investment in private companies (note 11) 
Defel'l'ed financing costs (note 12) 
Investment properties (notes 8 and 15) 
Properly and equipment (Schedule and note 15) 
Restricted funds (note 13) 

Cash and marketable securities 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (notes 14 and 17) 
Long-term debt (note 15) 
Restricted funds (note I 3) 

Commitments (note 18) 

Retained earnings 

(3) 

2022 2021 
$ $ 

34,472,709 19,518,800 
23,594,200 13,33 1,443 

7,214,117 7,310,285 
85,256 377,947 

208,109 119,466 
7,003,931 6,998,482 

127,173,241 145,522,391 
10,104,488 7,152,986 
4,293,307 4,155,397 

56,618 60,844 
15,812,948 13,951,366 
4,033,581 3,569,864 

38,430,833 72,729,781 

272,483,338 294,799,052 

3,4 12,222 3,214,712 
4,630,962 5,825,439 

38,430,833 72,729,781 

46,474,017 81,769,932 

226,009,321 213,029, 120 

272,483,338 294,799,052 
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Island Investment Develop1nent Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Retained earnings - Beginning of year 

Net earnings for the year 

Retained earnings - End of year 

(4) 

2022 
$ 

213,029, 120 

12,980,201 

226,009,321 

2021 
$ 

194,500,095 

18,529,025 

213,029,120 



Island Investment Develop1nent Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Fol' the yea!' ended March 31, 2022 

Revenue 
Interest on notes and loan receivable (note 17) 
Jnvesttnent incon1e 
Provincial Nominee Program fees 
Provincial Nominee Program defaults 
Property operations (notes 16 and 17) 

Expenses 
Doubtful accounts 
Education contribution 
Equipment 
Grants for settlement funding 
Interest and bank charges 
Interest on notes payable (note 17) 
Management fees (note I 7) 
Meetings and conferences 
Office 
Professional fees 
Promotion and advertising 
Property operations (note I 7) 
Provision for possible losses (note I 0) 
Rent (note 17) 
Salaries (note 17) 
Travel 
Amortization 
Amortization of deferred financing costs 

Operating eamings 

Othel' income (expense) 
Gain on sale of property and equipment 
Loss from hurricane damages 
Insurance recovery fro1n hurricane da1nages 

Net eamings fol' the year 

(5) 

2022 2021 
$ $ 

5,889,609 7,155,058 
1,305,98 l 2,398,013 
l,141,905 1,923,401 
8,861,448 10,553, 179 

11,409,745 10,092,513 

28,608,688 32,122,164 

334,284 84,314 
416,195 457,156 

3,399 l,109 
695,928 461,558 

l,545 l,320 
113,545 140, 146 
537,500 537,500 

6,059 1,620 
63,866 61,551 
82,753 193,788 

852 803 
9,328,045 7,818,766 

736,190 629,765 
I I 0,733 113,260 

2,027,335 2,004,905 
. 7,355 17,055 

I ,168,026 l,061,508 
l,123 16,256 

15,634,733 13,602,380 

12,973,955 18,519,784 

6,246 9,241 
(2, I 74,990) (l,142,704) 
2,174,990 1,142,704 

6,246 9,241 

12,980,201 18,529,025 
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Island Investlnent Development Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Cash provided by (used in) 

Operating activities 
Net earnings for the year 
Ite111s not affecting cash 

A1no11ization 
Atnortization of deferred financing costs 
Gain on sale of property and equip1nent 
Provision for possible losses 

Net change in non-cash working capital ite1ns 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expense 
Decrease (increase) in inventory 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Financing activities 
Decrease in Jong-tenn debt - net 
Increase in advances to related con1pany 

Investing activities 
Increase in invest1nent in private co111panies 
Increase in 1narketable securities - net 
Decrease in restricted funds - cash and 111arketable securities 
Decrease in restricted funds - liability 
Decrease (increase) in notes receivable - net 
Decrease (increase) in de1nand loan receivable 
Additions to property and equipn1ent 
Additions to investinent prope1iies 
Capital grants received 
Proceeds on disposal of property and equip1nent 
Decrease in deferred financing costs 

Increase in cash 

Cash - Beginning of year 

Cash - Encl of year 

(6) 

2022 
$ 

12,980,201 

1,168,026 
l,123 

(6,246) 
736,190 

14,879,294 

96,168 
292,691 
(88,643) 
197,510 

15,377,020 

(l,194,477) 
(2,951,502) 

(4,145,979) 

(137,910) 
(10,262,757) 
34,298,948 

(34,298,948) 
17,612,960 

(5,449) 
(923,861) 

(2,614,663) 
45, 199 

6,246 
3,103 

3,722,868 

14,953,909 

19,518,800 

34,472,709 

2021 
$ 

18,529,025 

l,061,508 
16,256 
(9,241) 

629,765 

20,227,313 

(325,154) 
(333,843) 

l,806 
319,675 

19,889,797 

(2,095,420) 
(5,033,688) 

(7,129,108) 

(7,010) 
(7,768,687) 
48,759,231 

(48,759,231) 
(l,571,314) 

8,983 
(911,747) 

(l,959,491) 
253,963 

9,241 

(l l,946,062) 

814,627 

18,704,173 

19,518,800 



Island Investment Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

1 Reporting entity 

The company is a provincial Crown corporation established under the provisions of the Island Investment 
Development Inc. Act and is therefore a non-taxable entity under the provisions of the Income Tax Act. 

The company is the corporate administrator of government-administered venture capital funds in the Province 
of Prince Edward Island with its purpose to invest in active business operations. The investments are made in 
typically new or expanding companies. The company also develops and commercializes the real property 
assets of the former Canadian Forces Base Summerside. It rents real property to commercial and residential 
tenants and operates airport, accommodations, food and beverage and retail divisions. 

The company administers the Prince Edward Island Provincial Nominee Program on behalf of the Province of 
Prince Edward Island, and charges applicants under the program various fees to process the applications 
received. 

Island Investment Development Inc.'s head office is located in Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island. 

Island Investment Development Inc. prepares its consolidated financial statements in compliance with 
Canadian International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board ("IASB"). 

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on June 23, 
2022. 

2 Basis of presentation 

(a) Basis of consolidation 

These consolidated financial statements include the operations of Island Investment Development Inc. 
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. (Century 2000 Fund) 
and Siemon Park Corporation. 

(b) Basis of measurement 

These consolidated financial statements have been presented on the historical cost basis except for 
certain financial instruments as indicated in note 3(a). 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the company's 
functional currency. 

(7) 
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Island Investn1ent Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

(d) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and 
expenses during the period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assutnptions are revic\ved on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting esti1nates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. 

The judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements are detailed in note 5. 

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) Financial instruments 

i) Classificatio11and111easure111e11/ of financial assets 

The company applies IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets into one of the following 
n1easuren1ent categories: 

• A1nortized cost; 
• Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); or 
• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

Financial assets include both debt and equity instruments. 

Debt instruments 

Classification and subsequent measmement of debt instruments depend on: 

• the company's business model for managing the asset; and 
• the cash flow characteristics of the asset. 

Business model assessment involves determining how financial assets are managed in order to 
generate cash flows. The company's business model assessment is based on the following 
categories: 

• Held to collect: The objective of the business model is to hold assets and collect contractual 
cash flows. Any sales of the asset are incidental to the objective of the model. 

• Held to collect and for sale: Both collecting contractual cash flows and sales are integral to 
achieving the objectives of the business model. 

• Other business model: The business model is neither held-to-collect nor held-to-collect and for 
sale. 

(8) 



Island Invest1nent Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

The company assesses the business model at a portfolio level reflective of how groups of assets are 
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. For the assessment of a business 
model, the company takes into consideration the following factors: 

• Whether the assets are held for trading purposes (ie. assets that the company acquires or incurs 
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a 
portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit or position taking); 

• The risks that affect the performance of assets held within a business model and how those 
risks are managed; and 

• The revenue of prior periods and expectations about future revenue activity. 

The contractual cash flow characteristics assessment involves assessing the contractual features of 
an instrument to determine if they give rise to cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending 
arrangement. Contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement if they 
represent cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding (SPPI). 

Principal is defined as the fair value of the instrument at initial recognition. Principal may change 
over the life of the instrument due to repayments or amortization of premium/discount. 

Interest is defined as the consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk associated 
with the principal amount outstanding and for other basic lending risks and costs (liquidity risk and 
administrative costs), and a profit margin. 

If the company identifies any contractual featmes that could significantly modify the cash flows of 
the instrument such that they are no longer consistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related 
financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL. 

Based on these factors, the company classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three 
n1easure1nent categories: 

An1ortized cost 

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI"), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at 
amortized cost. The cal'l'ying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss 
allowance recognized and measured in note I 0. Interest income form these financial assets is 
included in 'Interest on notes and Joans receivable' using the effective interest rate method. 

(9) 
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Island Investment Develop1nent Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

}<(fir value through profit or loss 

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and 
presented in the profit or loss statement within "Investment income" in the period in which it arises, 
unless it arises from debt instruments that were designated at fair value or which are not held for 
trading, in \Vhich case they are presented separately in 11 Investlnent inco1ne11

• Interest inco111e fro111 
these financial assets is included in "Investment income" using the effective interest method. 

Fair value through other co111prehensive inco111e (FVOCI) 

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, 
where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not 
designated at FVTPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCT), expect for 
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and 
losses on the instrument's amortized cost which are recognized in profit or loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified form 
equity to profit or loss and recognized in "Investment income". lnterest income from these financial 
assets is included in "Investment income" using the effective interest rate method. 

Equity instruments 

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at FVTPL, except where the company's 
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at 
FVOCI. When this election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognized in other 
comprehensive income and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. 
lmpairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value. Dividends, when representing a return on such investments, continue to be 
recognized in profit or loss as other income when the company's right to receive payments is 
established. 

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are included in "lnvestment income" in the 
state111ent of co1nprehensive inco1ne. 

ii) Classification and 111easure111ent of financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following measurement categories: 

• Amortized cost; 
• Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); 
• Designated at FVTPL. 

(10) 
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Island Invest1nent Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

Financial liabilities 111easured at a111ortized cost 

Long-term debt and restricted funds are accounted for at amortized cost. Interest on notes payable, 
calculated using the effective interest rate method, is recognized as interest expense. 

Financial liabilities measured al FVTPL 

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are held principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term, or form a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together 
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Financial 
liabilities are recognized on a trade date and are accounted for at fair value, with changes in fair 
value and any gains or losses recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of the 
non-interest inco111e. ·rransaction costs are expensed as incurred. 

Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL 

Financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by the company 
upon initial recognition, and once designated, the designation is irrevocable. The FVTPL 
designation is only available for those financial liabilities for which a reliable estimate of fair value 
can be obtained. 

Financial liabilities are designated at FVTPL when one of the following criteria is met: 

• The designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would 
other\vise arise; or 

• A group of financial liabilities are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value 
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or 

• The financial liability contains one or more embedded derivatives which significantly modify 
the cash flows otherwise required. 

Financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair 
value and any changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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iii) Determination affair value 

Fair value of a financial asset or liability is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfe1· a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal, or in its 
absence, the most advantageous market to which the company has access at the measurement date. 

The company measures instruments carried at fair value under the following fair value hierarchy. 
The different levels have been defined as follows: 

• Level I - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
• Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices); and 
• Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 

Determination of fair value and the resulting hierarchy requires the use of observable market data 
whenever available. The classification in the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that 
is significant to the measurement of fair value. 

iv) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities 

The derecognition criteria are applied to the transfer of part of an asset rather than the asset as a 
whole, only if such part comprises specifically identified cash flows from the asset, a fully 
proportionate share of the cash flows from the asset, or a fully proportionate share of specifically 
identified cash flows from the asset. 

A financial asset is derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset has 
expired or the company transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial 
asset; or has assumed an obligation to pay those cash flows to an independent third-party, or the 
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of that asset to an 
independent third-party. Management determines whether substantially all the risk and rewards of 
ownership have been transferred by quantitatively comparing the variability in cash flows before 
and after the transfer. If the variability in cash flows remains significantly similar subsequent to the 
transfer, the company has retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 

Where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are neither retained 
nor transferred, the company derecognizes the transferred asset only if it has lost control over the 
asset. Control over the asset is represented by the practical ability to sell the transferred asset. If the 
company retains control over the asset, it will continue to recognize the asset to the extent of its 
continuing involve111ent. 

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of (i) 
the consideration received and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other 
comprehensive income is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled 
or expires. !fan existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same counterparty on 
substantially different terms or the terms of the existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of 
a new liability at fair value. The difference in the respective carrying amount of the existing liability 
and the new liability is recognized as a gain/loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

v) l111pair111e111 

The company applied a three-stage approach to measure allowance for credit losses, using an 
expected credit Joss approach as required under IFRS 9 for the financial assets measured at 
amortized cost. 

The expected credit Joss impairment model reflects the present value of all cash shortfalls related to 
default events either (i) over the following 12 months or (ii) over the expected life of a financial 
instrun1ent. 

The impairment model measures credit loss allowances using a three-stage approach based on the 
extent of credit deterioration since origination: 

• Stage I - where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 
of a financial instrument, an amount equal to I 2 months expected credit loss is recorded. The 
expected credit loss is computed using a probability of default occurring over the next 12 
months. For those instruments with a remaining maturity ofless than 12 months, a probability 
of default corresponding to remaining term to maturity is used. 

• Stage 2 - when a financial instrument experiences a credit risk subsequent to origination but is 
not considered to be in default, it is included in Stage 2. This requires the computation of 
expected credit loss based on the probability of default over the remaining estimated life of the 
financial instru1nent. 

• Stage 3 - financial instruments that are considered to be in default are included in this stage. 
Similar to Stage 2, the allowance for credit losses captures the lifetime expected credit losses. 

The probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD) inputs used 
to estimate expected credit losses are modelled based on macroeconomic variables that are most 
closely related with credit losses in the relevant portfolio. 

Details of these statistical inputs are as follows: 

• PD -the probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time 
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the remaining estimated life. 

• EAD - the exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into 
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of 
principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on 
committed facilities and accrued interest from missed payments. 
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• LGD - the loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs 
at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those 
that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is 
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD. 

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the 
remaining expected life from the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The assessment 
considers borrower-specific quantitative and qualitative information without consideration of 
collateral and the impact of forward-looking macroeconomic factors. Common assessments for 
credit risk include management judgment, delinquency and monitoring. 

When measuring expected credit loss, the company considers the maximum contractual period over 
which the company is exposed to credit risk. All contractual terms are considered when determining 
the expected life, including prepayment and extension and rollover options. 

The company considers a financial instrument to be in default as a result of one or more loss events 
that occurred after the date of initial recognition of the instrument and the loss event has a negative 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the instrument that can be reliably estimated. This 
includes events that indicate: 

• Significant financial difficulty of the borrower; 
• Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; 
• High probability of the borrower entering a phase of bankruptcy or a financial recognition; 
• Measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the loan or the underlying assets 

that back the loan. 

The company considers that default has occurred and classifies the financial asset as impaired when 
it is more than 90 days past due. 

The company writes off an impaired financial asset, either partially or fully, when there is no realistic 
prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, write-off is generally after receipt of any 
proceeds from the realization of security. In circumstances where the net realizable value of any 
collateral has been determine and there is no reasonable expectation of further recover, write-off may be 
earlier. 

(b) Cash 

Cash consists of cash held in banks and cash on hand. Bank indebtedness is considered to be a financing 
instru1nent. 
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( c) Inventory 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs are assigned using the specific 
item formula for food inventory. Costs include all expenses directly attributable to the purchase and 
delivery of the product to the Company's location. Fuel oil inventory is valued at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value and is recorded at invoice cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses. 

(d) Deferred financing costs 

The costs incurred in obtaining financing have been capitalized and are being amortized using the 
straight-line basis over the term of the notes payable, which is 60 months. 

(e) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying assets are added to 
the cost of the assets until they are substantially ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

(f) Property and equipment 

Property and equipment are recorded at the fair value on the transition date of April I, 2015 to IFRS for 
Siemon Park Corporation, a subsidiary, as deemed cost, with additions since that time measured at 
historic cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, property and equipment is recorded at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The company allocates the amount 
recognized in respect of each item in property and equipment to its significant components and amortizes 
each component separately. 

Amortization is recognized so as to write-off the cost less residual values over the useful lives of the 
assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at each year
end with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortization rates 
are as follows: 

Sewer and water infrastructure 
Runways and taxiways 
Roads and parking areas 
Buildings 
Heavy equipment 
Furniture and equipment 
Motor vehicles 
Computer equipment and software 

2% - 4% declining balance 
8% declining balance 
8% declining balance 

4% - 20% declining balance 
20% declining balance 
20% declining balance 
30% declining balance 
30% declining balance 

As asset's carrying value is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is higher than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the 
asset's fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. No property and equipment were identified as 
impaired as at March 31, 2022. 
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(g) Investment properties 

Investment properties include land and buildings, roads and paving held to earn rental income. 
Investment properties are recorded at the fair value on the transition date of April I, 2015 to IFRS of 
Siemon Park Corporation, a subsidiary, as deemed cost, with additions since that time measured at 
historic cost. Subsequent to its initial recognition, investment properties are recorded at cost less 
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. The company allocates the amount 
recognized in respect of each item in investment properties to its significant components and amortizes 
each component separately. 

Amortization is recognized so as to write-off the cost less residual values over the useful lives of the 
assets. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed at each year
end with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortization rates 
are as follows: 

Building 
Building - roof/shingles 
Building - equipment 
Building - painting 
Building - tenant improvements -

based on lease term I - 5 years 
Building - tenant improvements -

based on lease term 6 - 15 
years 

4% declining balance 
6% declining balance 
8% declining balance 

I 0% declining balance 

20% declining balance 

I 0% declining balance 

Investment properties are derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use 
and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on retirement or 
disposal of investment properties are recognized in the income statement in the year of retirement or 
disposal. 

(h) Capitalization policy - property and equipment and investment properties 

./lcquisilion, cons/ruction or develop111ent over tin1e: 

The cost of constructing a capital asset includes direct construction or development costs (such as 
materials and labour) and overhead costs directly attributable to the construction or development activity. 

The cost of capital assets includes the purchase price and other acquisition costs such as installation costs 
including architectural, design and engineering fees, legal fees, survey costs, site preparation costs, 
freight charges, transportation insurance costs, duties, testing and preparation charges. 
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Better111ent: 

The cost incurred to enhance the service potential of a capital asset is a betterment. Service potential 
may be enhanced when there is an increase in the previously assessed physical output or service capacity, 
associated operating costs are lowered, the life or useful life is extended, or the quality of output is 
improved. The cost incurred in the maintenance of the service potential of a capital asset is a repair, not 
a betterment. If a cost has the attributes of both a repair and a betterment, the portion considered to be a 
betterment is included in the cost of the capital asset. 

Govern111e11t assistance: 

Government assistance towards acquisition of capital assets is deducted from the related capital assets 
with any amortization calculated on the net amount. 

Buildings and renovations: 

All expenditures that provide future benefit beyond the annual operating period and which are an integral 
component of the building are classified as an addition to the building. 

(i) Impairment of long-lived assets 

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely 
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for 
impairment and some are tested at cash generating unit level. The company tests long-lived assets for 
itnpainnent on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circu111stances indicate that its carrying 
amount of the asset is not recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of 
the asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The impairment loss is measured as the amount by 
which the carrying amount of the long-lived asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The carrying amount 
of a long-lived asset is not recoverable ifthe carrying amount exceeds the higher of fair value less costs 
to disposal and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash 
flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the 
present value of those cash flows. 

U) Revenue recognition 

Interest on notes and loans receivable is recognized as revenue in the period eamed. 

Investment income is recorded in the period earned. 

Provincial No1ninee Progra1n fees are recorded as revenue \Vhen earned. 

Provincial Nominee Program defaults are recorded as revenue in the year in which the deposit period 
ends and the applicant does not meet the conditions for repayment. 

Property operations revenue arises mainly from the rental of commercial, residential and hotel 
accommodation and food and beverage revenues. Revenue from these contracts is recognized in 
accordance with the five step model in lFRS 15: 
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1. identify the contract with a customer; 
2. identify the performance obligations in the contract; 
3. determine the transaction price, which is the total consideration provided by the customer; 
4. allocation the transaction price among the performance obligations in the contact based on their 

relative fair values; and 
5. recognize revenue when the relevant criteria are met for each performance obligation. 

Accommodation revenues are recognized over time as the accommodation service is provided. Food and 
beverage, retail and airport operations are recognized at a point in time. The transaction price is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable less any trade discounts or volume 
rebates. 

Revenues are recognized when the goods or services have been provided to the customer, it is probable 
that the associated economic benefit will flow to the company and the amount of revenue can be reliably 
tneasured. 

Revenue from commercial and residential rental operations, included in property operations, is 
recognized straight-line over the terms of the leases when collection is reasonably assured. The 
difference between the rental revenue recognized and the amounts contractually due under the lease 
agreements is recorded in trade receivables. The company retains substantially all of the benefits and 
risks of ownership of its income properties and, therefore, accounts for its leases with tenants as 
operating leases. Realty tax and operating cost recoveries, and other incidental income are recognized on 
an accrual basis. 

Miscellaneous revenue is recognized in the period in which the transaction or events that give rise to the 
revenue occm and collection is reasonably assmed. 

(k) Government assistance and other grants 

The Governments of Canada and Prince Edward Island have made grants to fund renovations to existing 
facilities of Siemon Park Corporation. Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assmance that 
the entity will comply with the conditions attaching to the grant, and that the grant will be received. 
These funds, along with other grants received, are credited to the operating expenses or capital assets to 
which they relate. During the year, $45, 199 (2021 - $253,963) in grants were received or receivable 
related to capital projects and credited to investment properties property and equipment. 
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(I) Provisions 

Provisions are recorded when a present legal or constructive obligation exists as a result of past events 
where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The amount 
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at the statement of financial position date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. 

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the company 
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the contract. No 
provisions meeting the criteria for recognition exist for the periods presented. 

4 Agent agreement 

Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. 

The Federal Minister of Citizenship and Immigration acts as an Agent for the company and Crown 
corporations of other participating provinces by receiving investments from immigrant investors and 
disbursing tl1em to the provincial Crown corporations in accordance with the allocation formula set out in the 
federal Immigration Regulations, 1978. All monies received by the Agent pursuant to the issuance of debt 
obligations are held by the Agent in a separate account from the moment such monies are received, on behalf 
of the company and the provincial designates. Investments are subject to a commission agreement whereby a 
5% commission is paid to the party that facilitates an investment. These commissions are paid out of the 
special account by the Agent on the first day of the second month following the issuance of a visa to the 
investor to the party that made the facilitated investment, and are recorded as deferred financing charges by 
the company. 

The Agent disburses the provincial allocation, less applicable commissions, to the company at the beginning 
of the five-year allocation period. The Agent issues a promissory note to the investor on behalf of the 
company. The company is obligated to repay the note, bearing interest at 0%, within 30 days after the expiry 
of the allocation period. 

The company is required to repay the investor, through the Agent, the investor's promissory note within 90 
days of receipt by the Agent of a request by the investor to withdraw his/her application for permanent 
residence, or upon the refusal of the application by the Minister. 

In the 2014 Federal Government Budget, it was disclosed that Citizenship Immigration Canada (CIC) would 
be terminating the Federal Immigrant Investor Programs during the 2014 calendar year. Subsequently, CIC 
has communicated to all provinces that there will be no accelerated repayment schedule for funds received 
through the Immigrant Investor Program. 
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5 Critical accounting estimates and judgments 

The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that will, by definition, seldom equal 
actual results. These estimates and judgments have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the period the assumptions change. The principal areas involving 
a higher degree of judgment or complexity and/or area which require significant estimates is described below: 

(a) Allowance for credit losses 

The expected credit loss model requires the recognition of credit losses based on up to 12 months of 
expected losses for performing loans and the recognition of lifetime losses on performing loans that have 
experienced a significant credit risk since origination. 

The determination of a significant increase in credit risk takes into account many different factors since 
origination, and certain other criteria, such as delinquencies. The assessment of a significant increase in 
credit risk requires experienced credit judgment. 

In determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and in calculating the amount 
of expected credit losses, we must rely on estimates and exercise judgment regarding matters for which 
the ultimate outcome is unknown. These judgments include changes in circumstances that may cause 
future assessments of credit risk to be materially different from current assessments, which could require 
an increase or decrease in the allowance for credit losses. 

(b) Fair value of financial instruments 

Fair value measurement techniques are used to value various financial assets and financial liabilities and 
are used in impairment testing on certain non-financial assets. 

The fair values of the company's financial instruments were estimated using the valuation methods and 
assumptions described below. Since many of the company's financial instruments lack an available 
trading market, the fair values represent estimates of the current market value of instruments, taking into 
account changes in interest rates that have occurred since their origination. Due to the use of subjective 
assumptions and uncertainties, the fair value amounts should not be interpreted as being realizable in an 
immediate settlement of the instruments. 

Fair values of floating loans and deposits approximate book value as the interest rates on these 
instruments automatically re-price to market and the spread remains appropriate. Fixed rate loans are 
valued by discounting the contractual future cash flows at current market rates for loans with similar 
credit risks. Fixed rate deposits are valued by discounting the contractual future cash flows using market 
rates currently being offered for deposits with similar terms. A credit valuation adjustment is applied to 
the calculated fair value of uninsured deposits to account for the company's own risk. 

The fair value for the company's investments as detailed in note 11 is determined as follows: 

• Atlantic Canada Regional Venture Fund LP and Island Capital Partners Seed Investment Fund LP 
do not trade in a public market. Fair value is determined by using Level 3 indicators. 
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(c) Estimated useful lives of investment properties and property and equipment 

Management estimates the useful I iv es of investment properties and property and equipment based on the 
period during which assets are expected to be available for use. The amounts and timing of recorded 
amortization expense of investment properties and property and equipment for any period are affected by 
these estimated useful lives. The estimates are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations 
change as a result of physical wear and tear, legal and other limits to use. It is possible that changes in 
these factors may cause changes in the estimated useful lives of the company's investment properties and 
property and equipment in the future. 

(d) Investment properties fair value 

The fair market value of investment properties is disclosed on an annual basis as of the statement of 
financial position date. This fair value information is also used to identify potential impairment losses as 
of the statement of financial position date. The valuations are prepared using recognized valuation 
techniques and the principles of!FRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The determination of the fair value 
requires the use of estimates and judgments on future cash flows from assets, discount rates applicable to 
those assets due to their nature and location, the unit of account, and assumptions with respect to highest 
and best use. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the statement of financial 
position date, including the impact of recent market transactions. The valuation techniques and 
significant unobservable inputs used in determining the fair value of investment properties are set out in 
note 8. 

(e) Investment properties and property and equipment 

The company's accounting policies related to investment properties and property and equipment are 
described in note 3. In applying these policies, judgment is applied to determine the significant 
components of each asset, including the useful lives over which componentized assets are to be 
amortized. Judgment is also required in determining what assets are classified as property, plant and 
equipment and what assets are classified as investment property. 

(!) COVID-19 

Since January 31, 2020, the outbreak ofCOVID-19 (eoronavirus), has resulted in governments 
worldwide enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virns. These measures have caused 
material disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown, and global equity markets 
have experienced significant volatility. The duration and impact of the COVID-19 outbreak is unknown 
at this time, as is the outcome of govemment and central bank interventions. 

The company has determined that these events have not had a material impact on the carrying value of 
assets and liabilities reported in these financial statements as at March 31, 2022. The duration and 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time. Therefore, it is not possible to reliably 
estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position 
and results of the company for future periods. 
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6 Financial instrnments 

]?air values versus carrying a111ounts 

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of 
financial position, are as follows: 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Fail· Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
level an1ount value an1ount value 

hierarchy $ $ $ $ 

Financial assets 
Cash Level 1 34,472,709 34,472,709 19,518,800 19,518,800 
~1arketable securities Level 1 23,594,200 23,594,200 13,331,443 13,331,443 
Accounts receivable Level2 7,214,117 7,214,117 7,310,285 7,310,285 
De1nand loan 

receivable Level2 7,003,931 7,003,931 6,998,482 6,998,482 
Notes receivable Level2 127,173,241 127,173,241 145,522,391 145,522,391 
Advance to related 

co1npany Level2 10,104,488 10,104,488 7,152,986 7,152,986 
lnvesttnents in private 

con1panies Level3 4,293,307 4,293,307 4,155,397 4,155,397 
Restricted funds Level I 38,430,833 38,430,833 72,729,781 72,729,781 

252,286,826 252,286,826 276,7 I 9,565 276,719,565 

Financial liabilities carried 
Accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities Level2 3,412,222 3,412,222 3,214,712 3,214,712 
Long-tenn debt Level2 4,630,962 4,630,962 5,825,439 5,825,439 
Restricted funds Level2 38,430,833 38,430,833 72,729,781 72,729,781 

46,474,017 46,474,017 81,769,932 81,769,932 

7 Accounts receivable 
2022 2021 

$ $ 

Trade 2,153,834 1,691,050 
Related party (note 17) 6,629,074 6,646,408 
Other 248,665 495,478 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (l,817,456) (1,522,651) 

7,214,117 7,310,285 
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8 Investment properties 

The fair market value of investment properties as of March 31, 2022 is $37,240,000 (2021 - $37,240,000). 
The investment properties have been valued by using a capitalized net operating income method and a market 
approach. Under this method, capitalization rates are applied to net operating income (revenues less property 
operating expenses). The key assumption is the capitalization rate of 10% to 13 % for commercial assets and 
7% for residential assets (2021 - 7% to 13%). The rate was further calibrated by applying a 20% discount to 
reflect a recent orderly transaction occurring at arm's length under current market conditions. This discount is 
to reflect the nature of these specialized assets and their location. Management engaged a third party 
appraiser to value the entire portfolio of assets during the 2021 fiscal year, based on 2020 operating results, 
and have updated the valuation numbers for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on those appraisal numbers. 

This valuation process is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and represents the estimated price 
that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
1neasure111ent dates. The fair value is based on each asset group's current use as a revenue generating 
investment property. The current use is considered to be the highest and best use. The company utilized 
capitalization and discount rates based on recent market transactions and past appraisals. To the extent that 
rates change from one reporting period to the next,or should another rate be more appropriate than the rate 
previously used, the fair value of the investment properties would increase or decrease accordingly. 

Land 
$ 

Cost 
Balance - March 31, 2021 1,584,351 
Additions 2,977 
Grants received 

Balance - March 31, 2022 1,587,328 

Accun1ulated a1nortization 
Balance - March 31, 2021 (23,491) 
A1nortization expense (ll,847) 

Balance - March 31, 2022 (35,338) 

Net carrying value 
March 31, 2021 1,560,860 

March 31, 2022 1,551,990 

(23) 

Buildings, roads 
and paving Total 

$ $ 

15,144,296 16,728,647 
2,611,686 2,614,663 

(34,036) (34,036) 

17,721,946 19,309,274 

(2,753,790) (2,777,281) 
(707,198) (719,045) 

(3,460,988) (3,496,326) 

12,390,506 13,951,366 

14,260,958 15,812,948 
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9 

The future minimum lease payments to be received under non-cancelable operating leases in aggregate for 
each of the following periods: 

$ 

Under 1 year 2,552,332 
2 to 5 years 6,300,082 
Over 5 years 4,635,552 

Total 13,487,966 

Demand loan receivable 

2022 2021 
$ $ 

Demand note receivable from Finance PEI 6,998,482 6,998,482 
Accrued interest receivable 5,449 

7,003,931 6,998,482 

The company entered into an agreement for Finance PEI, a provincial Crown corporation, to receive a 
$15,000,000 revolving line of credit. 

Interest is charged monthly at a rate equal to the Department of Provincial Treasury of Prince Edward Island's 
short-term lending rate and the total amount is repayable on demand. 

The demand loan is secured by a promissory note for $15,000,000 and a revolving credit agreement. 

(24) 
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Island Investment Develop1nent Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

10 Notes receivable 

(a) Loans at amortized cost 

2022 

Gross Allo,vance for Net carrying 
loans credit losses an1ount 

$ $ $ 

tvlanufacturing and 
processing -
general 45,889,896 15,570,211 30,319,685 

Manufacturing and 
processing - steel 595,308 595,308 

Aerospace 2,660,438 2,660,438 
Touris1n 26,951,860 1,876,666 25,075,194 
General business 64,375,569 16,224,705 48,150,864 
Agriculture 1,795,240 1,795,240 
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,283,338 572,418 1,710,920 
Residential !0,777,784 !0,777,784 
Bioscience 8,913,505 165,259 8,748,246 

I 64,242,938 37,069,697 127,173,241 

(b) Impaired loans 

2022 

Gross 
irnr>aircd Allo"•ancc for Net carrying 

loans c1·cdit losses a1nount 
$ s $ 

Manufacturing 
and processing 
- general 27,540,536 15,236,196 12,304,340 

Manufacturing and 
processing M steel 595,308 595,308 

Aerospace 2,660,438 2,660,438 
Touris1n 8,896,562 1,876,663 7,019,899 
General business 33,781,294 16,102,313 I 7,678,981 
Agriculture 1,795,240 1,795,240 
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,283,338 572,418 l,7 I0,920 
Bioscience 1,518,595 1,518,595 

79,071,3 I I 36,448,028 42,623,283 

(25) 

Gross 
loans 

$ 

51,308,551 

6,855,219 
2,556,577 

28,408,281 
72,400,441 

1,822,122 
2,223,465 
4,565,856 

I 1,715,386 

181,855,898 

Gross 
in1)lai1·cd 

loans 
$ 

27,704,320 

672,760 
2,556,577 

28,408,281 
35,388,513 

1,822,122 
2,223,465 
1,466,872 

!00,242,910 

2021 

Allo\\'ancc for Net carrying 
c1·cdit losses a1nou11t 

$ s 

13,624, 187 37,684,364 

6,855,219 
2,545,393 11,184 
2,197,325 26,210,956 

16,817,752 55,582,689 
1,822,122 

921,960 1,301,505 
4,565,856 

226,890 11,488,496 

36,333,507 I 45,522,39 I 

2021 

Allo\\'ancc for Net carrying 
credit losses a1nount 

$ $ 

13,236,815 14,467,505 

672,760 
2,545,392 I 1,185 
2,197,325 26,210,956 

16,745,170 18,643,343 
1,822,122 

921,960 1,301,505 
1,466,872 

35,646,662 64,596,248 

£\'Pm ArsenaultBestCameronEllis 
!mYa C>W!1f/W:JfflO/ESS~NXOWffA'/TS 



Island Investment Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

(c) Allowance for credit losses 

Balance 
as at 

Apl'il 1, 
2021 

$ 

Manufacturing and processing 
- general 13,624, 187 

Aerospace 2,545,393 
Tourisn1 2, 197,325 
General business 16,817,752 
Fisheries/aquaculture 921,960 
Bioscience 226,890 

36,333,507 

Balance 
as at 

April 1, 
2020 

$ 

Manufacturing and processing 
- general 13,140,492 

Infonnation and con1111unication 
technology 205,914 

Aerospace 2,434,897 
Tourisn1 2, 113,325 
General business 14,510,041 
Fisheries/aquaculture 2,141,580 
Bioscience 1,157,493 

35,703,742 

(26) 

Pl'ovision fol' 
(l'ecovery of) 

Cl'edit 
losses 

$ 

1,946,027 
115,045 

(320,662) 
(593,047) 
(349,542) 

(61,631) 

736,190 

Pl'ovision for 
(recovel'y of) 

Cl'edit 
losses 

$ 

483,695 

(205,914) 
110,496 
84,000 

2,307,711 
(1,219,620) 

(930,603) 

629,765 

2022 

Net 
write-offs Net 

$ $ 

15,570,214 
2,660,438 
1,876,663 

16,224,705 
572,418 
165,259 

37,069,697 

2021 

Net 
write-offs Net 

$ $ 

13,624,187 

2,545,393 
2,197,325 

16,817, 752 
921,960 
226,890 

36,333,507 
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Island Invest1nent Develop1nent Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

Stage 1 
As at March 31, 2022 $ 

Manufacturing and processing 
- general 334,017 

Aernspace 
Touris111 
General business 122,393 
F isheries/aq uacul ture 
Bioscience 165,259 

621,669 

Stage 1 
As at March 31, 2021 $ 

Manufacturing and prncessing 
- general 387,372 

Aernspace 
'fouris1n 
General business 72,582 
F isheries/aquacul tu re 
Bioscience 226,890 

686,844 

Loans pas/ due bu/ no/ impaired 

31 - 90 days 9l+days 
$ 

fvlanufacturing and 
processing~ 

general 2,724,119 

Related party notes: 

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
$ $ $ 

1,529,603 13,706,591 15,570,211 
2,660,438 2,660,438 
1,876,666 1,876,666 

15,864,538 237,774 16,224,705 
572,418 572,418 

165,259 

17,394,141 19,053,887 37,069,697 

Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
$ $ $ 

1,377,888 11,858,927 13,624, 187 
2,545,393 2,545,393 

681,277 1,516,048 2,197,325 
16,507,976 237,194 16,817,752 

921,960 921,960 
226,890 

21,112,534 14,534, 129 36,333,507 

2022 2021 

Total 31 - 90 days 91+ days Total 
$ $ $ $ 

2,724,119 2,724,119 2,724,119 

Included in manufacturing and prncessing arc unsecured notes receivable due from Finance PEI of $3,586, 116 
(2021 - $3,660,992). 

Included in notes receivable is accrued interest of$738,506 (2021 - $738,275) from Finance PEI. 

(27) 
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Island lnvest1nent Develop1nent Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

11 Investment in private companies 

Invesl!nent in private co111panies: 
Atlantic Canada Regional Venture Fund LP 
Island Capital Partners Seed Investment Fund 
Sandpiper Ventures Fund Limited 

12 Deferred financing costs 

Con1n1issions 

13 Restricted funds 

Cost 
$ 

728,854 

Accumulated 
ainortization 

$ 

672,236 

2022 
$ 

2,139,860 
1,882,353 

271,094 

4,293,307 

2022 

Net 
$ 

56,618 

2021 
$ 

2,273,044 
1,882,353 

4,155,397 

2021 

Net 
$ 

60,844 

Restricted funds held in trust consist of the following amounts held under the Provincial Nominee Program: 

Good Faith deposits 
Language deposits 
Escrow deposits - Business Impact category 
Intermediary deposits 

2022 
$ 

54,073 
21,665 

37,355,095 
1,000,000 

38,430,833 

2021 
$ 

79,073 
21,665 

71,929,043 
700,000 

72,729,781 

The company has internally restricted cash and marketable securities to meet or exceed the restricted funds 
payable. 

(28) 
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Island Investinent Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

14 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Trade payables and accrued liabilities 
Governn1ent ren1ittances 
Related entities 
Other 

15 Long-term debt 

Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. 
Non-interest bearing notes payable, nominally dated with 

commencement dates ranging from April 1, 2017 to April 1, 
2019, repayable in full in five years from the 
commencement date pursuant to the federally administered 
Immigrant Investor Program 

Island Investment Development Inc. 
2.95% term loan, due August 2023, to the Province of Prince 

Edward Island, payable in quarterly payments of$155,574 
including interest, unsecured 

2.46% term loan, due November 2022, to the Province of 
Prince Edward Island, payable in quarterly payments of 
$47,962 including interest, unsecured 

Siemon Park Corporation 
Non-interest bearing loan, payments of$6,250, commenced on 

September 1, 2019 for 120 consecutive months 
Non-interest bearing loan, payments of$4,275, commencing on July 

l, 2020, for 116 consecutive months 

Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. 
All notes payable are pursuant to the Immigrant Investor Regulations. 

2022 
$ 

2,519,347 
128,002 
154,270 
610,603 

3,412,222 

2022 
$ 

291,568 

3, 148,709 

142,135 

612,500 

436,050 

4,630,962 

2021 
$ 

1,882,768 
67,821 

681,231 
582,892 

3,214,712 

2021 
$ 

654,463 

3,668,499 

327,627 

687,500 

487,350 

5,825,439 

The Province of Prince Edward has provided a guarantee of the notes payable to the Minister of Citizenship 
and Immigration (Agent) in the event of the failure of Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. to repay 
the notes payable to the Agent within 30 days following the end of the allocation period. 

(29) 
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Island Investment Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

Siemon Park Corporation 

As additional security for certain long-term debt and an authorized operating line of credit of $900,000, 
Siemon Park Corporation has provided a location specific general security agreement over all present and 
future personal property of certain buildings, a floating charge over inventory and appliances of the residential 
units, an assignment of residential rents, an assignment of specific commercial rents, a first fixed charge 
mortgage with cash value insurance coverage over the residential units, a collateral mortgage over certain 
properties and a general assignment of book debts. 

The principal payments due on the long-term debt over the next five years are as follows: 

Year ending March 3 l, 2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

16 Revenue from contracts with customers 

$ 

l,052,497 
2,782,515 

126,300 
126,300 
126,300 

The company has recognized the following amounts related to revenue in accordance with IFRS 15 on the 
state1nent of con1prehensive incon1e: 

2022 2021 
$ $ 

Accon1111odations l,590,717 1,271,834 
Food and beverage l,466,974 940,302 
Airport 385,524 481,638 
Retail 313,306 245,897 

3,756,521 2,939,67 l 

The company has recognized the following amounts related to revenue in accordance with IFRS 17 on the 
state111ent of con1prehensivc inco1ne: 

2022 2021 
$ $ 

Conunercial rent 4,629,206 4,155,117 
Residential rent 3,024,018 2,997,725 

7,653,224 7, 152,842 

11,409,745 10,092,513 

(30) 



Island Invest1nent Develop1nent Inc. 
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The revenue from contracts with customers is included in property operations on the Consolidated Statement 
of Comprehensive Income. 

The above revenues recognized in accordance with IFRS 15 were derived from hotel, restaurant, airport and 
retail sites which are located at Siemon Park, Prince Edward Island. The company has not recognized any 
additional contract assets or liabilities associated with this revenue. 

17 Related party transactions 

Related parties 

Finance PEI and Innovation PEI are Crown corporations of the Province of Prince Edward Island. 

Related party balances 

Included in accounts receivable is $5,706, 13 I (2021 - $6,044, I 50) from Finance PEI and $922,943 (2021 -
$602,256) from other enterprises owned or controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island. 

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $420 (2021 - $85,445) to Innovation P.E.I., $300,007 
(2021 - $465,568) to the Province of Prince Edward Island and $153,850 (2021 - $130, 188) to other 
enterprises owned or controlled by the Prnvince of Prince Edward Island. 

Advances to related company: 

2022 
$ 

2021 
$ 

Finance PEI 10,104,488 7,152,986 

Advances to related company are non-interest bearing with no specific terms of repayment. 

'fransactions 

Included in interest on notes and loan receivable is $46,065 (202 I - $46,065) from Finance PEI. 

Included in prope1iy operations is revenue of$5,169,577 (2021 - $4,034,394) and purchases of$620,536 
(2021 - $584,311) from enterprises controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island. 

(31) 
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Island Investment Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

Included in expenses are management fees of$537,500 (2021 - $537,500) and rent of$50,000 (2021 -
$50,000) to Finance PEI and interest on notes payable of $107,085 (2021 - $138,313) to the Province of 
Prince Edward Island. 

Included in capital grants received is $45, 199 (2021 - $173,837) from the Province of Prince Edward Island or 
enterprises controlled by the Province of Prince Edward Island. 

As of March 31, 2022, Island Investment Development Inc. administered the Mandatory Isolation Support for 
Temporary Foreign Workers Program on behalf of the federal government for employers in Prince Edward 
Island. The company administered $1,038,353 in funds for this program with $340,502 to be paid to the 
Department of Finance to cover lodging costs and $697,851 paid to employers to cover wage costs. As the 
company was acting as an agent for the federal government, these expenditures are not included as expenses 
of the corporation. 

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the amount of consideration 
established and agreed to by the two parties and approximate fair market value. 

Compensation of directors and key management personnel 

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel were as follows: 

Salaries 

2022 
$ 

689,235 

2021 
$ 

778,540 

Key management personnel consist of the executive director, directors and manager needed to administer the 
programs in Island Investment Development Inc. Certain members of key management are employed under 
Innovation PEI and the portion of their salaty which pertains to the work performed for Island Investment 
Development Inc. is reflected in the $537,500 (2021 - $537,500) management fee paid to Finance PEI. 

18 Commitments 

Prince Edward Island Century 2000 Fund Inc. loans approved but not disbursed at March 31, 2022 amount to 
$13,622,691 (2021 - $5,739,711). 

Island Investment Development Inc. has committed to, but not disbursed $2,486,758 (2021 - $2,726,954) in 
advances to private companies. 
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19 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Island Investment Development Inc. 's principal business activities result in a statement of financial position 
that consists primarily of financial instruments. The principal financial risks that arise from transacting 
financial instruments include credit, liquidity, market and operational risk. Authority for all risk-taking 
activities rests with the Board of Directors (Board), which approves risk management policies, delegates' 
limits and regularly reviews management's risk assessments and compliance with approved policies. 
Qualified professionals throughout Island Investment Development Inc. manage these risks through 
comprehensive and integrated control processes and models, including regular review and assessment of risk 
1neasure1nent and reporting processes. 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty of a financial 
instrnment fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises primarily from the company's notes 
receivable and marketable securities. 

The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial position date in relation to 
each class of recognized financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets indicated in the statement 
of financial position. The maximum credit exposure does not take into account the value of any collateral 
or other security held, in the event other entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the 
financial instru111ents in question. 

The company's maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was: 

Cash 
Marketable securities 
Accounts receivable 
Demand loan receivable 
Notes receivable 
Advances to related companies 
Investment in private company 
Restricted funds 

(33) 

2022 2021 
$ $ 

34,472,709 19,518,800 
23,594,200 13,331,443 
7,214,117 7,310,285 
7,003,931 6,998,482 

127,173,241 145,522,391 
10, 104,488 7,152,986 
4,293,307 4,155,397 

38,430,833 72,729,781 

252,286,826 276,719,565 
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Island Invest1nent Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

i) Notes receivable 

For the notes receivable portfolio, the company uses risk modelling that is customer based rather 
than product based. The company reviews the borrowers capacity to repay the loan rather than 
relying exclusively on collateral, although it is an important component in establishing credit risk. 
Typically, collateral consists of capital assets held by the borrower but can extend to working capital 
such as inventory when warranted. Any shortfall in collateral as compared to the carrying value of 
the loan is considered when analyzing the loan for the provision that needs to be applied to it. 

Credit is approved by staff and the company's Board of Directors with loans in excess of $1 million 
requiring approval by Treasury Board. The company factors the financial strength of each borrower, 
the security which is available, their position in industry and past payment history when assessing 
all potential loans. 

ii) Cash and marketable securities 

Cash and marketable securities have a low credit risk exposure as the assets are high quality 
investments with low risk countcrparties. 

(b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its financial obligations as they come 
due. Specifically, the company needs to ensure it has adequate resources to repay all accounts payable 
and accrued liabilities, notes payable and to pay back any deposits under the Provincial Nominee 
Program as they come due. The company's approach to manage liquidity risk is to closely monitor its 
cash flows and forecast the expected receipts and obligations. 

The table below analyzes the company's financial liabilities into relevant groupings based on the 
remaining period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. 

2022 

Under 1 Bet,veen 
year 1 - 2 years 

$ $ 

Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities 3,412,222 

I.,ong-tenn debt 1,052,497 2,782,515 
Restricted funds 38,430,833 

42,895,552 2,782,515 

(34) 

Bet,veen 
2-5 years 

$ 

378,900 

378,900 

Over 
5 years Total 

$ $ 

3,412,222 
417,050 4,630,962 

38,430,833 

417,050 46,474,017 
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Accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities 

Long-tenn debt 
Restricted funds 

Under I 
year 

$ 

3,214,712 
1,191,373 

72,729,781 

77,135,866 

Bct\veen 
l-2years 

$ 

1,055,600 

l,055,600 

Bet\veen 
2 - 5 years 

$ 

3,035,116 

3,035,116 

Over 
5 years 

$ 

543,350 

543,350 

2021 

Total 
$ 

3,214,712 
5,825,439 

72,729,781 

81,769,932 

As at March 31, 2022, the company has $96,497, 742 (2021 - $105,580,024) in cash and marketable 
securities that is readily available to be used to meet the cash outflows of the company's financial 
liabilities. 

( c) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and equity prices will affect 
the company's income or the value of its holdings in financial instruments. The objective of market risk 
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while 
optimizing the return on risk. 

(i) Price risk 

The company is exposed to price risk because of the marketable secmities held by the company that 
are classified as fair value through profit or loss. This company is not exposed to commodity price 
risk. To manage its price risk arising from marketable secmity is the company diversifies its 
portfolio. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

The following table sets out the assets and liabilities on the earlier of contractual maturity or 
repricing date. Use of the table to derive information about the company's interest rate risk position 
is limited by the fact that borrowers may choose to terminate their financial instruments at a date 
earlier than contractual matmity or repricing date. For example, notes receivable are shown at 
contractual maturity but could prepay earlier. 
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Under 
1 year 

$ 

Assets 
Cash 34,472,709 
l'vlarketable securities 23,594,200 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 
De111and loan receivable 6,998,482 

Efl'cctive interest rate 0.37o/o 
Notes receivable (net of 

allo\vance for losses) 15,937,616 
EtTective interest rate 4.11% 

Advances to related con1pany 
Inveshnent in private 

co1npanies 
Deferred financing costs 
Property and equip111ent 
Invest1nent properties 
Restricted funds 

Total assets 81,003,007 

IAabilities and surplus 
Accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities 
LongRtenn debt 1,052,497 

Eftective interest rate l.83% 
Restricted funds 

EftCctive interest rate 0 
Retained earnings 

Total liabilities and retained 
earnings 1,052,497 

Interest rate sensitivity gaj) 79,950,510 

(36) 

Over I to Over 
5 years 5 years 

$ $ 

96,441,272 14,794,353 
4.10% 2.43% 

96,441,272 14,794,353 

3,161,415 417,050 
2.44% 0.00% 

3,161,415 417,050 

93,279,857 14,377,303 

2022 

Not interest 
rate sensitive Total 

$ $ 

34,472,709 
23,594,200 

7,214,117 7,214,117 
85,256 85,256 

208,109 208,109 
5,449 7,003,931 

127,173,241 

IO, 104,488 I0,104,488 

4,293,307 4,293,307 
56,618 56,618 

4,033,581 4,033,581 
15,812,948 15,812,948 
38,430,833 38,430,833 

80,244,706 272,483,338 

3,412,222 3,412,222 
4,630,962 

38,430,833 38,430,833 

226,009,321 226,009,321 

267,852,376 272,483,338 

(187,607,670) 
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(d) 

2021 

Under Over t to Over Not interest 
1 year 5 years 5 years rate sensitive Total 

$ $ $ $ $ 

Assets 
Cash 19,518,800 19,518,800 
Marketable securities 13,331,443 13,331,443 
Accounts receivable 7,310,285 7,3 I0,285 
Prepaid expenses 377,947 377,947 
Inventory 119,466 119,466 
Den1and loan receivable 6,989,499 8,983 6,998,482 

Effective interest rate 1.34% 
Note receivable (net of 

al!o\vance for losses) 26,940,651 96,199,427 22,382,313 145,522,391 
Effective interest rate 3.87% 4.07% 2.43% 

Advances to related co1npany 7,152,986 7,152,986 
Invest1nent in private 

con1panies 4,155,397 4,155,397 
Deferred financing costs 60,844 60,844 
Property and equip1nent 3,569,864 3,569,864 
lnvesttnent properties 13,951,366 13,951,366 
Restricted funds 72,729,781 72,729,781 

Total assets 66,780,393 96,199,427 22,382,313 !09,436,919 294, 799,052 

Liabilities and sur11Ius 
Accounts payable and 

accrued liabilities 3,214,712 3,214,712 
Long~tenn debt 1,191,373 4,090,716 543,350 5,825,439 

Effective interest rate l.60o/o 1.51°/o 0.00% 
Restricted funds 72,729,781 72,729,781 
Retained earnings 213,029,120 213,029,120 

Total liabilities and 
retained earnings 1,191,373 4,090,716 543,350 288,973,613 294,799,052 

Interest rate sensitivity gap 65,589,020 92,108,711 21,838,963 (179,536,694) 

Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with 
the company's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than 
credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and 
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. 

The company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses 
and damage to the company's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures 
that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation 
of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior management 
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Island Investment Development Inc. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022 

( e) Capital management 

The primary objective of Island Investment Development Inc.'s capital management is to ensure that it 
maintains a healthy financial position in order to support its business. Island Investment Development 
Inc. manages its capital structure and makes changes to it in light of changes in economic conditions. 
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Island Investment Development Inc. 
Schedule of Property and Equip1nent 
For the year ended March 31, 2022 Schedule 

Cost 2022 Accumulated amortization 2022 2022 

Grants Net book 
Beginning Additions Rl'c<'i\'cd Ending Bcghming Amortization Ending yalue 

$ s s s s s s s 

Land 30,043 17,500 47,543 47,543 
Buildings and improvements l,272,707 413,054 1,685,761 285,926 58,305 344,231 !,341,530 
Paving and water and sewer 1,655,737 219,890 (11,163) 1,864,464 356,938 86,608 443,546 !,420,918 
Fun1iture and equipment 1,620,177 168,541 1,788,718 838,632 163,390 !,002,022 786,696 
Motor vehicles 367,711 48,530 416,241 153,839 54,579 208,4 ! 8 207,823 
Computer equipment and 

software 398,031 56,346 454,377 !39,207 86,099 225,306 229,071 

5,344,406 923,861 (11,163) 6,257,104 1,774,542 448,981 2,223,523 4,033,581 

Cost 2021 Accumulated a111orli1~'ltion 2021 2021 

Granls Net book 
Hcginniug Additions Hccci\'cd Ending Beginning Amortbalion Ending \•alue 

s s s s s s s s 

Land 30,043 30,043 30,043 
Buildings and improvements 1,052,086 220,621 1,272,707 243,246 42,680 285,926 986,781 
Paving and water and sewer 1,501,984 153,753 1,655,737 272,983 83,955 356,938 1,298,799 
Furniture and equipment 1,430,126 190,051 1,620, 177 679,863 158,769 838,632 781,545 
Motor vehicles 290, 739 76,972 367,711 101,237 52,602 153,839 213,872 
Computer equipment and 

software 127,681 270,350 398,031 86,215 52,992 139,207 258,824 

4,432,659 911,747 5,344,406 1,383,544 390,998 1,774,542 3,569,864 
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Contact Information 

Island Investment Development Inc. 

94 Euston St., Charlottetown, PE, ClA 7M8 

Tel 902-620-3628 

Fax 902-368-5886 

www.immigratepei.ca 
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